
AGENDA
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 14, 2021 – 6:00 PM 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

CITY OF GOOSE CREEK, SOUTH CAROLINA

 

  
I. INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
  
II. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS - PLEASE PROCEED TO THE PODIUM - 2 MINUTE TIME LIMIT

If you do not plan to attend the City Council Meeting due to COVID-19, you may submit your
comments to the City Clerk at cityclerk@cityofgoosecreek.com, via hand delivery or by US Mail
to Kelly Lovette, City Clerk, City of Goose Creek, P.O. Drawer 1768, Goose Creek, SC 29445.
Please send your comments to the City Clerk no later than 12:00 noon on the date of this
meeting; your remarks will be distributed to the Mayor and City Council but will not be read
aloud during the meeting.

  
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
   
 a. City Council Meeting - August 10, 2021

 
  
IV. PRESENTATIONS & PROCLAMATIONS
  
V. OLD BUSINESS & PUBLIC HEARINGS
   
 a. AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE VII: TRAFFIC CODE, CHAPTER 70, SECTION 70.29 “U”

TURNS, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF GOOSE CREEK, A SOUTH
CAROLINA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION (Second and Final Reading of a Public Hearing)

  
VI. NEW BUSINESS & PUBLIC HEARINGS
   
 a. A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE AND CONTACT PERSON

FOR PURPOSES OF THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT OF 2021 (Introduction and Final
Reading of a Public Hearing)

   
 b. AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE

CITY OF GOOSE CREEK, SOUTH CAROLINA, TO AUTHORIZE MEETINGS TO BE HELD BY
TELEPHONIC OR OTHER ELECTRONIC MEANS AND TO GENERALLY UPDATE OTHER
PROVISIONS OF THE CITY CODE, AND MATTERS RELATED THERETO (Introduction and First
Reading of a Public Hearing)

  

 
PURSUANT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT SC CODE 30-4-80; WRITTEN NOTICE
WAS DELIVERED TO THE PRESS BY EMAIL ON FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 10, 2021 AND
DULY POSTED AT CITY HALL LOCATED AT 519 N GOOSE CREEK BOULEVARD AND ON
CITYOFGOOSECREEK.COM. CITY HALL IS AN ACCESSIBLE FACILITY, FOR
ASSISTANCE CALL 843-797-6220 X. 1113.

1



VII. ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT
   
 a. Approval to hire Crystal Reed as Director of Recreation.
   
 b. Request to Purchase vehicle for Assistant Fire Chief of EMS
  
VIII. MAYOR'S REPORT
  
IX. MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS
   
 a. July Monthly Department Reports (Informational Purposes Only)
  
X. EXECUTIVE SESSION
   
 a. DISCUSSION OF NEGOTIATIONS INCIDENT TO PROPOSED CONTRACTURAL

ARRANGEMENTS PER 30-4-70 (A) (2) - BERKELEY COUNTY ROADS INTERGOVERNMENTAL
AGREEMENT

  
XI. ADJOURN

2



Request for City Council
Agenda Item

To: Mayor and City Council

From: Kelly J. Lovette, City Clerk

 Regular Meeting

 Work Session

 Special Meeting

  Ordinance  Resolution  Proclamation  Request to
Purchase

Department Head:

____________________
Signature & Date

City Administrator:

____________________
Signature & Date

 
Please check one box

 
Please check one box, if applicable

 
Ordinance/Resolution Title
City Council Meeting - August 10, 2021
 

Background Summary

Financial Impact

Impact if denied

Impact if approved

 

3



Page 1 of 4

MINUTES
CITY OF GOOSE CREEK, SOUTH CAROLINA

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
TUESDAY, AUGUST 10, 2021 – 6:00 PM

CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS
519 N GOOSE CREEK BOULEVARD

MAYO R /CO U NCIL  P R E SE NT :
May or  G re g ory  S.  Ha b i b
May or  Pr o T em Je rry  T e ka c
Co un c i l me m b er Hann ah  Co x
Co un c i l me m b er  Me l is s a  Enos (B y Ph on e )
Co un c i l me m b er  D e bra  Gr e en- Fl et c h er
Co un c i l me m b er  C or ey M cC lar y
Co un c i l me m b er  Gay la  M cS wa in

CITY  S TA F F :
Cit y  A dm in is tr at or  Na ta l i e  Z e ig l er
As s is ta nt  C it y  A dm in is t rato r  B r i an C o o k
Cit y  C l er k Ke l ly  J .  Lo v et te
Dir e ct or  o f  E c on om i c D e ve l op m ent  Mat t  B ra dy
Fi el d S er vi c es  D i v. Co m man d er  Ca pta in T om H il l
Pu b l i c  I nf or mat i on O f f ic er  F ran k Jo hns on
Dir e ct or  o f  Pla nn in g an d Z on in g Mar k Br o de ur

PR ES S P R ES E NT:
Non e

GU ES TS  P R ES E NT:
Non e

                                                                              

PURSUANT TO THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT SC CODE 30-4-80: WRITTEN NOTICE WAS DELIVERED TO THE 
PRESS BY EMAIL ON FRIDAY, AUGUST 6, 2021, AND DULY POSTED AT CITY HALL LOCATED AT 519 N GOOSE CREEK 
BOULEVARD, AN ACCESSIBLE FACILITY, AND ON CITYOFGOOSECREEK.COM

I. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Habib called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm and requested Mr. Dustin Wise, resident of the City of Goose 
Creek and Pastor of Step Church in Moncks Corner, to lead in the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Habib made a motion to amend the Agenda so City Council could consider an emergency Ordinance to 
authorize and permit the use of electronic meetings and other materials related thereto should the need arise.

Motion: Mayor Habib; Second: Mayor Pro Tem Tekac
Discussion: None.
Carried: Six (6) Ayes. (Councilmember Enos not present for vote.)

Motion: Councilmember McSwain; Councilmember McClary
Discussion: Mayor Habib stated the proposed emergency Ordinance is to allow the City to go back to electronic 
meetings, if necessary; it was unclear what the future holds; and, a councilmember was not physically present. 
Carried: Six (6) Ayes. (Councilmember Enos not present for vote.)

II. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS: Note: All comments sent to the City Clerk by 12:00 noon on the date of this meeting, 
via US Mail or Email, as stated on the meeting Agenda, were forwarded to City Council.

Ms. Sharina Haynes, a resident of the City of Goose Creek, spoke regarding any decisions City Council may make in the 
future concerning its municipal elections being changed to November during odd numbered years. She stated she 
wished to keep it during even number years and elaborated on those reasons. 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

a. City Council Meeting – July 13, 2021
b. City Council Workshop – July 27, 2021

Motion: Councilmember Green-Fletcher; Second: Councilmember Cox

4



Page 2 of 4

Discussion: None.
Carried: All Ayes.

IV. PRESENTATIONS & PROCLAMATIONS:

a. Presentation to City Council from Goose Creek Recreation Commission – Chairman Jerry Glass

Mr. Glass presented City Council a check in the amount of $28,465.78. He provided some history of the Goose 
Creek Parks & Playgrounds which later became Goose Creek Recreation Commission, as well as the Booster club
which was instrumental in the collection of the monies that were collected and what was being presented to the 
City that evening.

V. EXECUTIVE SESSION

a. SECTION 30-4-70 (A) (5) DISCUSSION OF MATTERS RELATING TO THE PROPOSED LOCATION, EXPANSION, 
OR THE PROVISION OF SERVICES ENCOURAGING LOCATION OR EXPANSION OF INDUSTRIES OR OTHER 
BUSINESSES IN THE AREA SERVED BY THE CITY (Discussion Only of Project Visitor - No Action Will Be Taken)

b. SECTION 30-4-70 (A) (2) RECEIPT OF LEGAL ADVICE RELATED TO ELECTION MATTERS. (Discussion Only - No 
Action Will Be Taken In Executive Session.)

Motion to go into Executive Session:
Motion: Mayor Pro Tem Tekac; Second: Councilmember McClary
Discussion: None.
Carried: All Ayes. 6:20 pm

Motion to come out of Executive Session:
Motion: Mayor Pro Tem Tekac; Second: Councilmember McSwain
Discussion: None.
Carried: All Ayes. 7:09 pm

VI. OLD BUSINESS & PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. AN ORDINANCE DECLARING A MORATORIUM ON THE ISSUANCE OF NEW BUSINESS LICENSES, PERMITS 
FOR EXPANSION, AND/OR CERTIFICATES OF OCCUPANCY FOR USED AUTOMOBILE-VEHICLE SALES AND/OR 
REPAIR-SERVICE SHOPS IN CERTAIN AREAS OF THE CITY OF GOOSE CREEK - (Second and Final Reading of a 
Public Hearing)

Motion: Councilmember Cox; Second: Councilmember McClary
Discussion: None.
Carried (Roll Call Vote): Mayor Pro Tem Tekac - Nay; Councilmember McSwain - Aye; Councilmember Enos - Aye; 
Councilmember Cox - Aye; Councilmember McClary - Aye; Councilmember Green-Fletcher - Aye; Mayor Habib -
Aye: Six (6) Ayes; One (1) Nay.

b. AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GOOSE CREEK, SOUTH CAROLINA 
BY REVISING AND MAKING CHANGES TO CHAPTER 37 ELECTIONS, SECTION 37.03 WHEN ELECTIONS TO BE 
HELD - (Second and Final Reading of a Public Hearing)
Motion: Mayor Pro Tem Tekac made a motion to Table the proposed Ordinance until November 2021 to allow City 
Council an opportunity to seek additional legal guidance; Second: Councilmember Green-Fletcher
Discussion: None.
Carried: (Roll Call Vote): Mayor Pro Tem Tekac - Aye; Councilmember McSwain - Aye; Councilmember Enos - Aye; 
Councilmember Cox - Aye; Councilmember McClary - Aye; Councilmember Green-Fletcher - Aye; Mayor Habib -
Aye: Seven (7) Ayes.

c. AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 33: CITY ORGANIZATIONS, CULTURAL ARTS COMMISSION, OF THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF GOOSE CREEK, SOUTH CAROLINA, BY REPEALING IN ITS ENTIRETY 
SECTION 33.102 COMPOSITION AND FUNCTIONS AND ADOPTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW SECTION 33.102 

5



Page 3 of 4

COMPOSITION AND FUNCTIONS, WHICH IS MADE A PART HEREOF AS IS FULLY SET OUT HEREIN - (Second 
and Final Reading of a Public Hearing)

Motion: Councilmember McClary; Second: Mayor Pro Tem Tekac

Discussion/Motion to Amend: Councilmember McSwain made a motion to amend the proposed Ordinance to 
change “shall” to “may” wherein it states “two (2) may be citizens of the Goose Creek Recreation Special Purpose 
Tax District; or own a business inside the City limits of Goose Creek, and who shall be appointed by City Council to 
serve two-year terms at the pleasure of City Council.”; Seconded: Councilmember McClary. 
Carried: (Roll Call Vote): Mayor Pro Tem Tekac - Aye; Councilmember McSwain - Aye; Councilmember Enos - Aye; 
Councilmember Cox - Aye; Councilmember McClary - Aye; Councilmember Green-Fletcher - Aye; Mayor Habib -
Aye: Seven (7) Ayes.

Discussion: There was no discussion to the original motion to the proposed Ordinance.
Carried: (Roll Call Vote): Mayor Pro Tem Tekac - Aye; Councilmember McSwain - Aye; Councilmember Enos - Aye; 
Councilmember Cox - Aye; Councilmember McClary - Aye; Councilmember Green-Fletcher - Aye; Mayor Habib -
Aye: Seven (7) Ayes.

VII. NEW BUSINESS & PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF GOOSE CREEK, SOUTH CAROLINA, BY 
CHANGING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 107 ETLING AVENUE. (TMS # 243-
08-05-052) FROM MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (R-2) TO RESTRICTED COMMERCIAL DISTRICT 
(RC) (Introduction and First Reading of a Public Hearing)

Mayor Habib stated the proposed Ordinance was removed from the Agenda to allow for a few errors to be 
corrected and City Council will revisit the proposal when the applicant resubmits their request. 

b. AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE VII: TRAFFIC CODE, CHAPTER 70, SECTION 70.29 “U” TURNS, OF THE CODE 
OF ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF GOOSE CREEK, A SOUTH CAROLINA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 
(Introduction and First Reading of a Public Hearing)

Mayor Habib stated the City’s current Ordinance prohibits “U” turns saying you cannot make them unless there is a 
sign that says you can, and South Carolina State Statute says you can make “U” turns unless there is a sign that 
says you cannot; therefore, the City needs to mirror the SC State Statute.

Motion: Councilmember Green-Fletcher; Second: Councilmember Cox
Discussion: None.
Carried (Roll Call Vote): Mayor Pro Tem Tekac - Aye; Councilmember McSwain - Aye; Councilmember Enos - Aye; 
Councilmember Cox - Aye; Councilmember McClary - Aye; Councilmember Green-Fletcher - Aye; Mayor Habib -
Aye: Seven (7) Ayes.

VIII. ADMINISTRATOR’SREPORT

a. REQUEST TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR AND/OR MAYOR TO PROCEED WITH PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES FROM THE BERKELEY CHARLESTON DORCHESTER COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS TO DRAFT A NEW 
ZONING ORDINANCE IN THE AMOUNT OF $65,000 FROM THE GENERAL FUND

Mrs. Zeigler presented a request for approval to authorize the City to enter into a contract agreement with 
Berkeley Charleston Dorchester Council of Governments to draft a new Zoning Ordinance as highly suggested in 
the City’s Compensation Plan. She stated the City spoke with other organizations, this was the least costly and 
BCDCOG is familiar with the City, they worked with the City on the Compensation Plan and City staff recommends 
the proposed contract. 

Motion: Councilmember McSwain; Second: Councilmember McClary
Discussion: Mayor Habib elaborated a little on the proposed contract and stated the City’s Code of Ordinances has 
been developed over sixty (60) years and it has been found wherein the Zoning Code sometimes contradicts itself, 

6



Page 4 of 4

which happens anytime over that period of time, and it needs to be redone to make it simpler and easier to apply, 
and this is why we are contracting with BCDCOG. Mrs. Zeigler reviewed a little bit of the process and stated the 
goal is a year or less for completion. 
Carried (Roll Call Vote): Mayor Pro Tem Tekac - Aye; Councilmember McSwain - Aye; Councilmember Enos - Aye; 
Councilmember Cox - Aye; Councilmember McClary - Aye; Councilmember Green-Fletcher - Aye; Mayor Habib -
Aye: Seven (7) Ayes.

IX. MAYOR’S REPORT

Mayor Habib reminded everyone of the Veteran Banners that are still on sale to honor a Veteran; he also mentioned 
the following upcoming events: Red Cross Blood Drive August 13; Outdoor Movie Night at Carnes Toy Story 4 on 
August 21 and Frozen September 25; Fall Festival October 2; National Night Out October 5; and in October and 
November former Mayor Michael Heitzler will again be giving history lectures at the Fire Department Headquarters’ 
Training Room. Mayor Habib encouraged people to get the COVID shot. He also remarked on Pastor John Davis, a 
personal friend of his and pastor of Summit Church, as well as campus minister of Charleston Southern University. 
Mayor Habib asked for prayers from the community for Pastor Davis and his family, as he is going through some major 
health issues.

X. MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS

a. MONTHLY REPORT OF CONTRACTS OVER $25,000; EXEMPTIONS AND 2021 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET 
APPROVALS (Informational Purposes Only)

b. July Monthly Department Reports (Informational Purposes Only)

XI. ADJOURN

Motion: Mayor Pro Tem Tekac; Second: Councilmember Green-Fletcher
Discussion: None.
Carried: All Ayes. 7:31 p.m.

Date: September 14, 2021
Kelly J. Lovette, MMC
City Clerk

7



Request for City Council
Agenda Item

To: Natalie Zeigler, City Administrator; Mayor and City Council

From: Chief LJ Roscoe

 Regular Meeting

 Work Session

 Special Meeting

  Ordinance  Resolution  Proclamation  Request to
Purchase

Department Head:

____________________
Signature & Date

City Administrator:

____________________
Signature & Date

 
Please check one box

 
Please check one box, if applicable

 
Ordinance/Resolution Title
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE VII: TRAFFIC CODE, CHAPTER 70, SECTION 70.29 “U” TURNS, OF
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF GOOSE CREEK, A SOUTH CAROLINA MUNICIPAL
CORPORATION (Second and Final Reading of a Public Hearing)

Background Summary
The City Ordinance for Uturns is in contradiction with SC State Law and the St. James Project, and
needs to be brought current. 

Financial Impact
N/A

Impact if denied
We won't be in compliance with SC State Law or the St. James Project.

Impact if approved
We will be in compliance. 

 

8



Page 1 of 1

Ordinance No.: 

AN ORDINANCE

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE VII: TRAFFIC CODE, CHAPTER 70, SECTION 70.29 “U” TURNS, 
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF GOOSE CREEK, A SOUTH CAROLINA
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION

              WHEREAS, the City of Goose Creek, South Carolina provides municipal services to its citizens, 
including the enforcement of traffic control by its Police Department; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Goose Creek’s current section of the Code of Ordinances on U Turns is in 
direct contradiction to the state of South Carolina’s Code of Laws Section 56-5-2120 Required Position 
and Method of Turning (d) (2); and Section 56-5-2140 Limitations on turning around (a) (b); and, 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this ordinance is to make Section 70.29 “U” Turns of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Goose Creek consistent with South Carolina State Law; and 

             NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED and ordered by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Goose Creek, South Carolina that the current Section 70.29 “U” Turns, of Title VII: Traffic Code, Chapter 
70, be repealed in its entirety and amended with a new Section 70.29 “U” Turns shall be permitted on 
any street, only when the movement can be made with safety and without interfering with other traffic, 
except where prohibited by an official sign.

All ordinances and provisions in conflict herewith are repealed, and if any sentence, clause, 
phrase, or word contained herein shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of this ordinance.

This ordinance shall be effective on the date of final reading.

INTRODUCED the 10th day of August, 2021.

DONE the day of September 2021.

Mayor Gregory S. Habib

Attest: ___________________________________
Kelly J. Lovette, MMC, City Clerk

Mayor Pro Tem Jerry Tekac Councilmember Debra Green-Fletcher

Councilmember Corey McClary Councilmember Hannah J. Cox

Councilmember Gayla S.L. McSwain Councilmember Melissa Enos  

9



Request for City Council
Agenda Item

To: Mayor and City Council

From: Tyler Howanyk

 Regular Meeting

 Work Session

 Special Meeting

  Ordinance  Resolution  Proclamation  Request to
Purchase

Department Head:

____________________
Signature & Date

City Administrator:

____________________
Signature & Date

 
Please check one box

 
Please check one box, if applicable

 
Ordinance/Resolution Title
A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE AND CONTACT PERSON FOR
PURPOSES OF THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT OF 2021 (Introduction and Final Reading of a
Public Hearing)

Background Summary

Financial Impact

Impact if denied

Impact if approved

 

10



          RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE AND CONTACT 
PERSON FOR PURPOSES OF THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT OF 2021

WHEREAS, the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) appropriates $19.53 billion to States for 
distribution to nonentitlement units of local government (NEUs), which are local governments typically 
serving a population under 50,000;

WHEREAS, the City of Goose Creek, South Carolina (the Municipality), is an NEU for purposes of 
ARPA and expects to receive funding pursuant to the ARPA appropriation;

WHEREAS, ARPA requires that the Municipality designate an Authorized Representative to 
approve and sign documents, make certifications required by ARPA, and otherwise act as the Municipality’s 
designated and lawfully appointed agent for purposes of ARPA; and

WHEREAS, ARPA further requires that the Municipality designate a Contact Person to receive 
official communications and notice related to ARPA;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows:

Section 1. Natalie Zeigler, the City Administrator of the Municipality, is hereby designated as the 
Municipality’s Authorized Representative pursuant to ARPA. The Authorized Representative is 
hereby authorized and directed to do all things necessary (including without limitation to sign 
documents, make certifications, make regular reports to council, and otherwise act on behalf of the 
Municipality) to receive and expend funds pursuant to an appropriation by council and ARPA rules. 
The Authorized Representative’s contact information is:

Natalie Zeigler
City Administrator
519 N. Goose Creek Blvd. Goose Creek SC 29445
843-797-6220
nzeigler@cityofgoosecreek.com

Section 2. Tyler Howanyk, the Chief Financial Officer of the Municipality, is hereby designated as 
the Municipality’s Contact Person pursuant to ARPA. The Contact Person’s contact information is:

Tyler Howanyk
Chief Financial Officer
519 N. Goose Creek Blvd. Goose Creek SC 29445
843-797-6220
thowanyk@cityofgoosecreek.com

DONE IN MEETING duly assembled this ___ day of September 2021.

Mayor Gregory S. Habib

Attest: ___________________________________
Kelly J. Lovette, MMC, City Clerk

11



Request for City Council
Agenda Item

To: City Administrator, Mayor, Members of City Council

From: Brian Cook, Asst. City Admin.

 Regular Meeting

 Work Session

 Special Meeting

  Ordinance  Resolution  Proclamation  Request to
Purchase

Department Head:

____________________
Signature & Date

City Administrator:

____________________
Signature & Date

 
Please check one box

 
Please check one box, if applicable

 
Ordinance/Resolution Title
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF
GOOSE CREEK, SOUTH CAROLINA, TO AUTHORIZE MEETINGS TO BE HELD BY TELEPHONIC OR
OTHER ELECTRONIC MEANS AND TO GENERALLY UPDATE OTHER PROVISIONS OF THE CITY CODE,
AND MATTERS RELATED THERETO (Introduction and First Reading of a Public Hearing)

Background Summary
The purpose of this requested amendment is to provide alternative means of meeting
participation and to generally update other provisions related thereto. 

Financial Impact

Impact if denied

Impact if approved
Additional options for meeting participation and updated procedures.

 

12



Page 1 of 9

ORDINANCE NO. _

AN ORDINANCE

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF GOOSE CREEK, SOUTH CAROLINA, TO AUTHORIZE MEETINGS 
TO BE HELD BY TELEPHONIC OR OTHER ELECTRONIC MEANS AND TO 
GENERALLY UPDATE OTHER PROVISIONS OF THE CITY CODE, AND MATTERS 
RELATED THERETO.

WHEREAS, the City of Goose Creek, South Carolina (the “City”), acting through City 
Council of the City of Goose Creek (the “City Council”), is a municipal corporation of the State of 
South Carolina located in Berkeley County, South Carolina, and as such possesses all general powers 
granted by the Constitution and statutes of the State to such public entities.

WHEREAS, Section 5-7-160 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the 
“S.C. Code”) provides that “[a] majority of the total membership of the council shall constitute a 
quorum for the purpose of transacting council business.”

WHEREAS, the Freedom of Information Act, which is codified at Title 30, Chapter 4 of the 
S.C. Code defines a meeting as “convening a quorum of the constituent membership of the public 
body, whether corporal or by means of electronic equipment, to discuss or act upon a matter over 
which the public body has supervision, control, jurisdiction or advisory power” [emphasis added].

WHEREAS, in keeping with the provisions of the S.C. Code, Section 31.065 of the City’s 
Code of Ordinances (the “City Code”) defines and describes the requirements for a “quorum” of City 
Council and Chapter 31 of the City Code further defines and describes the rules of procedure for the 
meetings of the City Council. 

WHEREAS, the City Council previously enacted an emergency ordinance on August 10, 
2021 (the “Emergency Ordinance”), the provisions of which temporarily suspended certain 
procedural rules of the City Council in response to social-distancing guidelines and executive orders 
and allowing for telephonic and electronic meetings.

WHEREAS, such telephonic and other electronic meetings have proven successful and 
effective under the Emergency Ordinance, and in light of the current public safety considerations 
associated with the 2019 novel coronavirus, and the potential for future public safety considerations, 
including those attendant to the adverse weather events that affect the State, the City Council finds 
that great benefit may be realized from authorizing meeting by telephonic or other electronic means 
whenever necessary and convenient for carrying out the business of the City, to include certain boards 
and commissions associated with the City. 

WHEREAS, certain provisions of the City Code are outdated and should be updated and 
revised. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council in a meeting 
duly assembled, as follows:

Section 1.

(a) It is found and determined that each statement of fact set forth in the preambles of this 
Ordinance is in all respects true and correct. 

(b) For the purposes of Sections 2 through 17 below, underlining shows added language 
for illustrative purposes only and strike through shows removed language for illustrative purposes 
only.

Section 2. By and through the enactment of this Ordinance, Title III, Chapter 31, Section 31.060
of the City Code is hereby amended and restated as follows:

13



Page 2 of 9

§ 31.060 – PLACE, DAY, AND TIME OF REGULAR MEETING; 
MEETINGS OPEN.

(A) The regular meetings of the City Council shall be held in the City Hall, or by telephonic 
or other electronic means, on the second Tuesday of each month. The time shall be 
6:00 p.m. unless another hour is specified.

(B) All meetings shall be open to the public, except as otherwise specifically provided for 
by the state “Freedom of Information Act.”

Section 3. By and through the enactment of this Ordinance, Title III, Chapter 31, Section 31.064
of the City Code is hereby amended and restated as follows:

§ 31.064 – DUTY TO ATTEND; PENALTY FOR FAILURE; ELECTRONIC 
ATTENDANCE.

(A) It shall be the duty of the Council members to attend the regular meetings of 
the Council and, when notified, to attend all extra or special meetings called 
by the Mayor. The Mayor or Council member failing or refusing to attend 
these meetings without sufficient excuse, shall pay the fine as the Council 
may impose.

(B) Council members may attend any regular, special, or emergency meetings of 
Council by telephonic or other electronic means, and shall be considered 
present for all purposes, if the meeting has been properly noticed, and all 
Council members and members of the public can reasonably hear the public 
proceedings and be heard, if and as applicable. Any number of Council 
members, including all, may attend telephonically or by other electronic 
means.

Section 4. By and through the enactment of this Ordinance, Title III, Chapter 31, Section 31.065
of the City Code is hereby amended and restated as follows:

§ 31.065 – QUORUM, LACK THEREOF; TIE VOTE.

(A) A simple majority of the total membership of Council members elected shall 
constitute a quorum to do business for the conduct of any business at a meeting. 
A Council member present but disqualified from voting on a question by state 
law due to a conflict of interest shall not be counted for the purpose of a 
quorum. If a quorum fails to appear within 15 minutes after the hour appointed 
for a Council meeting, no member shall be required to attend longer. 

(B) If, in the vote the Council shall be equally divided, the question shall be 
decided in the negative.

Section 5. By and through the enactment of this Ordinance, Title III, Chapter 31, Section 31.067
of the City Code is hereby amended and restated as follows:

§ 31.067 – ROBERT’S RULES OF ORDER.

(A) Except as may be otherwise provided, the proceedings of the City Council 
shall be controlled by the Robert’s Rules of Order, Modern Edition.

(B) The City Administrator and/of officer designated by City Council shall act as 
parliamentarian. 

(C) To the extent Robert’s Rules require a physical presence of the Council for 
purposes of constituting a quorum, such requirement is waived so long as the 
Council maintains a quorum under Section 31.065 hereinabove. Further, to 
the extent Robert’s Rules or any other procedural rules, procedures or 
regulations conflict with any other provision of this Code, the provisions of 
the code shall be controlling in all instances.

Section 6. By and through the enactment of this Ordinance, Title III, Chapter 31, Section 31.072
of the City Code is hereby amended and restated as follows:

14



Page 3 of 9

§ 31.072 – VOTING; MEMBER REQUIRED TO VOTE.

(A) Council members in attendance by telephonic or other electronic means shall 
have all rights, including, but not limited to, the right to make motions, second 
motions, and discuss and vote on all matters under consideration by Council. 

(B) The “yeas” and “nays” on any question shall always be recorded Roll call 
voting shall be used when required requested by any member, and for any 
meeting of Council where one or more members of Council are participating 
electronically. When the question has been stated, the roll shall be called by 
the Clerk, and after the first response has been made to the call, all debate 
shall cease and no member shall say more than “yea” or “nay”. During the 
roll call, no member shall leave the Council chamber and every member 
present shall, when the member's name is called, give the member's vote 
unless excused by a majority of members present. Should the vote of all 
present result in a tie, the question shall be decided in the negative.

Section 7. By and through the enactment of this Ordinance, Title III, Chapter 31, Section 31.074
of the City Code is hereby amended and restated as follows:

§ 31.074 – INTERESTED MEMBER NOT TO VOTE.

No member of Council or the Mayor shall vote on any question of a private nature, 
in the event of which the person is personally interested. A member present but 
disqualified from voting on a question by state law due to a conflict of interest shall 
not be counted for purpose of a quorum.

Section 8. By and through the enactment of this Ordinance, Title III, Chapter 31, of the City Code 
is hereby amended by adding a section to be numbered Section 31.082 which section shall read as 
follows:

§ 31.082 – FORM.

Every proposed ordinance shall be in writing and in the form required for final 
adoption which shall include:

(A) A title briefly describing the content;

(B) Findings, reasons or basis for the ordinance, if desired and appropriate;

(C) An enacting clause;

(D) Citation of any ordinance repealed;

(E) The provisions of the ordinance, which may include code section numbers if 
the ordinance is to be codified or amends an existing codified ordinance;

(F) The effective date of the ordinance;

(G) The approval of the City Attorney as to form and assignment of an ordinance 
number; and

(H) Space for the signatures of the Mayor, members of Council and the City Clerk.

Section 9. By and through the enactment of this Ordinance, Title III, Chapter 31, of the City Code 
is hereby amended by adding a section to be numbered Section 31.089 which section shall read as 
follows:

§ 31.089 – APPEARANCE OF CITIZENS; PUBLIC PARTICIPATION.

(A) Subject to the terms of the applicable agenda for any meeting, any citizen of 
the City shall be entitled to make an appearance (either in person or via 
electronic means) before Council at any meeting concerning any City matter, 
with the exception of personnel matters. Persons desiring to speak must 
notify the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.

15



Page 4 of 9

(B) Except as provided hereinbelow, public comment periods and public hearings
shall be conducted in accordance with rules and procedures of Council. Notices 
of public hearings shall include instructions regarding the manner in which the 
public hearing shall be held

(C) With respect to any electronic or virtual meetings of Council and subject to the 
terms of the applicable agenda for such meeting, members of the public may 
also participate electronically, as follows:

(1) Public Comments for Electronic Meetings. Individuals wishing to 
provide written comments for any public comment period may submit 
written comments to the City Clerk no later than one hour prior to any 
meeting of Council, and the Mayor (or other presiding official) may
read such comments aloud during the applicable public comment 
period. Nothing herein shall require such comments to be read aloud.
Individuals wishing to speak during the public comment period may 
sign up with the City Clerk no later than one hour prior to the scheduled 
time for the public hearing. The City Clerk shall contact those who wish 
to speak at the public comment period by phone, in the order the 
requests were received, to admit them to the public comment period. 

(2) Public Hearings for Electronic Meetings.  Individuals wishing to 
provide written comments for any public hearing held during an 
electronic meeting may email comments to the City Clerk no later than 
one hour prior to the scheduled time for such public hearing, and the 
Mayor (or other presiding official) shall read such comments aloud 
during the public hearing. Individuals wishing to speak at the public 
hearing shall sign up with the City Clerk no later than one hour prior to 
the scheduled time for the public hearing. The City Clerk shall contact 
those who wish to speak at the public hearing by phone, in the order 
the requests were received, to admit them to the public hearing. 

Section 10. By and through the enactment of this Ordinance, Title III, Chapter 31, of the City Code 
is hereby amended by adding a section to be numbered Section 31.090 which section shall read as 
follows:

§ 31.090 – AGENDA.

Absent exigent circumstances, matters to be considered at any meeting of Council 
shall be placed on a written agenda prepared by the Mayor or his assigns and publicly 
and timely posted by the City Clerk.

Section 11. By and through the enactment of this Ordinance, Title III, Chapter 32, of the City Code 
is hereby amended to add Section 31.091 as follows:

§ 31.091 – MEETINGS AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION.

(A) A quorum of any City board or commission shall mean a simple majority of 
the total membership of each board or commission.

(B) Members of any City board or commission may attend any regular, special, 
or emergency meeting by telephonic or other electronic means, and shall be 
considered present for all purposes, if the meeting has been properly noticed, and all 
members and members of the public can hear the public proceedings and be heard. 
Any number of members, including all, may attend telephonically or by other 
electronic means. Members in attendance by telephonic or other electronic means 
shall have all rights, including, but not limited to, the right to make motions, second 
motions, and discuss and vote on all matters under consideration by such board or 
commission.

(C) Any public participation required by any City board or commission may be 
held electronically under the procedures applicable to Council in Section 31.089, 
mutatis mutandis. 

16



Page 5 of 9

(D) To the extent permitted by law, all procedural rules of any City board or 
commission shall be revised or shall be deemed revised by the terms hereof.

Section 12. By and through the enactment of this Ordinance, Title III, Chapter 32, Section 32.23
of the City Code is hereby amended and restated as follows:

§ 32.23 – GENERAL DUTIES

The City Clerk Shall: 

(A) Attend all meetings of City Council (either physically or by telephonic or 
other electronic means);

(B) Take minutes thereof, and record the same in a suitable book, and keep an index 
book in connection therewith, in which shall be indexed the subject matter of 
important matters in the proceedings of Council, with a reference to the page of 
the record book where the matters appear;

(C) Lay before the Council all communications and other papers addressed to it 
through the Clerk;

(D) Have the proceedings of Council promptly published in a local newspaper when 
so required by Council;

(E) Have charge of and be responsible for the preservation of all papers, records and 
documents of every description pertaining to the city;

(F) So arrange and file all the papers in packages or cases as will facilitate access to 
them, arranging and filing same according to their subject matter and numbering 
the packages or cases numerically;

(G) Keep an index book, in which shall be entered alphabetically the names or 
subject matter of the papers and documents, and the number of the package or 
case in which the same are to be found;

(H) Issue all notices, personal and general, which the interest, convenience, laws and 
orders of the city require in the administration of its government; and

(I) Communicate to the Council all information the officer may acquire which may 
contribute to the efficiency of the government and the welfare of the people.

Section 13. By and through the enactment of this Ordinance, Title III, Chapter 32, Section 32.49 
of the City Code is hereby amended and restated as follows:

§ 32.49 – DUTY TO ATTEND COUNCIL MEETINGS.

The City Attorney shall attend meetings (either physically or by telephonic or other 
electronic means) of Council when notified.

Section 14. By and through the enactment of this Ordinance, Title XV, Chapter 151, Section 
151.008(B) of the City Code is hereby amended and restated as follows:

§ 151.008 –RULES OF PROCEDURE.

(B) Meetings.

(1) Time and place. The Commission shall meet (either physically or by 
telephonic or other electronic means) at the call of the Chairperson and at the 
times as the Chairperson or Commission may determine. An annual schedule 
of regular meetings shall be adopted, published and posted at City Hall in 
December of each year. Special meetings may also be called by the 
Chairperson upon 48 24 hours’ notice, posted, and delivered to all members 
and local news media. Meetings shall be held at the place stated in the notices 
and shall be open to the public.

17



Page 6 of 9

(2) Agenda. A written agenda shall be furnished by the Secretary to each 
member of the Commission and the news media, and shall be posted at least 
five days 24 hours prior to each regular meeting, and at least 48 hours prior to 
a each special meeting. Items may be added to, or removed from the agenda at 
a meeting by majority vote.

(3) Quorum. A quorum in all meetings shall be four a simple majority of 
the total members. A quorum shall be present (either physically or by 
telephonic or other electronic means) before any business is conducted other 
than rescheduling the meeting.

(4) Rules of order. Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the conduct of 
meetings except as otherwise provided by these rules of procedure. To the 
extent Robert’s Rules require a physical presence of the Council for purposes 
of constituting a quorum, such requirement is waived so long as the Council 
maintains a quorum under Section 151.173(B)(3) hereinabove.

(5) Voting. Motions may be made by any member other than the presiding 
official:

(a) A member must be present (either physically or by telephonic 
or other electronic means) to vote;

(b) Each member shall vote on every question unless disqualified 
by law;

(c) The disqualification shall be decided by the member affected, 
however, a member shall disqualify himself or herself from voting 
whenever he or she has a personal or monetary interest in the property 
under discussion, or upon belief that he or she will be directly affected 
by the Commission's decision, or when any applicant/agent has sought 
to influence his or her vote (other than influences exerted during public 
hearings);

(d) The member shall announce the reason for disqualification, 
give it to the Chairperson in writing, have it placed in the minutes and 
refrain from deliberating or voting on the question;

(e) A member present but disqualified from voting on a question 
by state law due to a conflict of interest shall not be counted for purpose 
of a quorum;

(f) A motion to approve any matter before the Commission, 
whether requiring subsequent Council approval or not, shall require a 
majority vote of the members present; and

(g) Tie votes constitute a failure of the motion.

(6) Conduct. Except for public hearings, no person shall speak at a Commission 
meeting unless invited to do so by the Commission.

Section 15. By and through the enactment of this Ordinance, Title XV, Chapter 151, Section 
151.173(B) of the City Code is hereby amended and restated as follows:

§ 151.173 – ORGANIZATION, MEETINGS AND RULES OF PROCEDURE.

(B) Meetings.

(1) Time and place. All scheduled meetings shall be open to the public and 
conducted in accordance with state law. Parties in interest may appear (either 
physically or by telephonic or other electronic means) personally or by agent. 
ZBA meetings shall be held at 6:00 p.m. at the Marguerite Brown Municipal 
Center, 519 North Goose Creek Boulevard, unless otherwise announced. 
Special meetings may be held on the call of the Chairperson upon 24 hours’
notice, at the other times as the ZBA may determine, posted and delivered to 

18



Page 7 of 9

all members and the local news media, and designate the time and place of its 
meetings.

(2) Agenda. A written agenda shall be furnished by the Secretary to each 
member of the ZBA and to the news media, and shall be posted at least five 
days prior to each meeting and at least 24 hours prior to a special meeting. 
Items may be removed from the agenda or postponed at a meeting by a majority 
vote.

(3) Quorum and compensation. A simple majority of the members, four, 
of the ZBA shall constitute a quorum. A quorum shall be present (either 
physically or by telephonic or other electronic means) before any business is 
conducted other than rescheduling the meeting. The members shall regularly 
attend meetings and public hearings of the ZBA and shall serve without 
compensation, except for reimbursement for authorized expenses attendant to 
the performance of their duties.

(4) Rules of order. Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the conduct of 
meetings except as otherwise provided by these rules of procedures. To the 
extent Robert’s Rules require a physical presence of the Council for purposes 
of constituting a quorum, such requirement is waived so long as the Council 
maintains a quorum under Section 151.173(B)(3) hereinabove.

(5) Conflict of interests. Any member of the ZBA who shall have a that 
has a direct or indirect interest in any property which that is the subject matter 
of or affected by a decision of the ZBA shall be disqualified from participating 
in the discussion, decision or proceedings of the ZBA in connection therewith.
A member present but disqualified from voting on a question by state law due 
to a conflict of interest shall not be counted for purpose of a quorum.

(6) Motions. Motions may be made by any member other than the 
presiding official. A motion to approve any matter before the ZBA shall require 
a majority vote of the members present. Tie votes shall constitute a failure of 
the motion.

Section 16. By and through the enactment of this Ordinance, Title XV, Chapter 151, Section 
151.174(A) of the City Code is hereby amended and restated as follows:

§ 151.174 – DECISIONS OF THE ZBA.

(A) Decisions and voting.

(1) Every decision of the ZBA shall be based upon findings of fact and 
every finding of fact shall be supported in the record of proceedings. All final 
decisions and orders of the ZBA must be in writing and be permanently filed 
in the office of the ZBA as public record. All findings of fact and conclusions 
of law must be separately stated in final decisions or orders of the ZBA which 
must be delivered to parties of interest by certified mail. The enumerated 
conditions required to exist on any matter upon which the ZBA is authorized 
to pass under these regulations shall be construed as limitations on power of 
the ZBA to act.

(2) Nothing herein contained shall be construed to empower the ZBA to 
change the terms of these regulations, or to effect changes in the zoning 
districts. The powers of the ZBA shall be so applied that the terms of these 
regulations will be strictly enforced.

(3) The majority vote of the ZBA members present (either physically or 
by telephonic or other electronic means) shall be necessary to approve any 
application upon which it is required to pass under these regulations or to effect 
any variance in the regulations.

Section 17. By and through the enactment of this Ordinance, Title XV, Chapter 151, 
Section 151.190(F)(6) of the City Code is hereby amended and restated as follows:

19



Page 8 of 9

§ 151.190 – ORGANIZATION.

(F) Organization and rules of procedures 

(6) Meetings.

(a) Time and place. All regularly scheduled meetings shall be open to the 
public, and conducted in accordance with state law. Parties in interest may 
appear (either physically or by telephonic or other electronic means)
personally or by agent. Regular meetings shall be held each month on the third 
Monday, at 6:00 p.m. at the Marguerite Brown Municipal Center, 519 North 
Goose Creek Boulevard, unless otherwise announced. Special meetings may 
be held on the call of the Chairperson upon 24 hours’ notice, at other times as 
the ARB may determine, posted and delivered to all members and the local 
news media, and designate the time and place of its meetings. Deadlines for 
ARB meetings occur at least 14 days prior to meeting dates. An annual 
schedule of regular meetings shall be adopted, published and posted at City 
Hall in December of each year.

(b) Agenda. A written agenda shall be furnished by the Secretary to each 
member of the ARB and to the news media, and shall be posted at least five 
days prior to each regular meeting. Items may be removed from the agenda or 
postponed at a meeting by a majority vote.

(c) Quorum and compensation. A simple majority of the members, four,
of the ARB shall constitute a quorum. A quorum shall be present (either 
physically or by telephonic or other electronic means) before any business is 
conducted other than rescheduling the meeting. The members shall regularly 
attend meetings and public hearings of the ARB and shall serve without 
compensation, except for reimbursement for authorized expenses attendant to 
the performance of their duties.

(d) Rules of order. Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the conduct of 
meetings except as otherwise provided by these rules of procedures. To the 
extent Robert’s Rules require a physical presence of the Council for purposes 
of constituting a quorum, such requirement is waived so long as the Council 
maintains a quorum under Section 151.173(B)(3) hereinabove.

(e) Conflict of interests. Any member of the ARB who shall have that has
a direct or indirect interest in any property which that is the subject matter of 
or affected by a decision of the ARB shall be disqualified from participating in 
the discussion, decision or proceedings of the ARB in connection therewith. A 
member present but disqualified from voting on a question by state law due to 
a conflict of interest shall not be counted for purpose of a quorum.

(f) Motions. Motions may be made by any member other than the 
presiding official. A motion to approve any matter before the ARB shall 
require a majority vote of the members present. Tie votes shall constitute a 
failure of the motion.

Section 18. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is, for any
reason, held or determined to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance.

Section 19. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed to the extent of 
such conflict. 

Section 20. This Ordinance shall be effective upon second reading and enactment.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]

20



Page 9 of 9

This ordinance shall be effective on the date of final reading.

INTRODUCED the ____ day of September 2021.

DONE the day of October 2021.

CITY OF GOOSE CREEK, SOUTH CAROLINA

Mayor Gregory S. Habib
(SEAL)

Attest: ___________________________________
Kelly J. Lovette, MMC, City Clerk

Mayor Pro Tem Jerry Tekac Councilmember Debra Green-Fletcher

Councilmember Corey McClary Councilmember Hannah J. Cox

Councilmember Gayla S.L. McSwain Councilmember Melissa Enos  

21



Request for City Council
Agenda Item

To: Mayor and Council

From: Natalie Zeigler

 Regular Meeting

 Work Session

 Special Meeting

  Ordinance  Resolution  Proclamation  Request to
Purchase

Department Head:

____________________
Signature & Date

City Administrator:

____________________
Signature & Date

 
Please check one box

 
Please check one box, if applicable

 
Ordinance/Resolution Title
Approval to hire Crystal Reed as Director of Recreation.

Background Summary

Financial Impact

Impact if denied

Impact if approved

 

22



Request for City Council
Agenda Item

To: Mayor, City Council and City Administrator

From: Tyler Howanyk

 Regular Meeting

 Work Session

 Special Meeting

  Ordinance  Resolution  Proclamation  Request to
Purchase

Department Head:

____________________
Signature & Date

City Administrator:

____________________
Signature & Date

 
Please check one box

 
Please check one box, if applicable

 
Ordinance/Resolution Title
Request to Purchase vehicle for Assistant Fire Chief of EMS

Background Summary
Staff requests permission to purchase a vehicle for the Assistant Fire Chief of EMS, a new position
that is included in the 2022 budget.  The vehicle was not included in the 2022 budget.  Staff
requests for this purchase to be made from fund balance.  The total price of the vehicle is
$43,985.
There are savings in the 2021 fire budget due to budgeted positions that have not been filled.
 Year to date, the fire budgets salaries are projected to be $157,000 under budget.  Your favorable
consideration of this request will be appreciated.

Financial Impact
The Assistant Fire Chief will have a vehicle.  The fire budget for 2021 is still projected to be under
budget.

Impact if denied
The Assistant Fire Chief will not have a vehicle.

Impact if approved
The Assistant Fire Chief will have a vehicle.

 

23



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Gregory S. Habib 
M A Y O R  

 
Debra Green-Fletcher 
Corey D. McClary 
Jerry Tekac 
Gayla S.L. McSwain  
Hannah J. Cox 
Melissa Enos 
C I T Y  C O U N C I L  

 

Natalie Zeigler 
C I T Y  A D M I N I S T R A T O R  

 
519 N. GOOSE CREEK BOULEVARD 

P.O DRAWER 1768 

GOOSE CREEK, SC 29445-1768 

TEL (843) 797-6220 

FAX (843) 863-5208 

 
 
 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Natalie Zeigler, City Administrator 
FROM:  Tyler Howanyk, Chief Financial Officer 
DATE:  September 10, 2021 
SUBJECT:  Request to purchase vehicle for Assistant Fire 
Chief of EMS 
 
Staff requests permission to purchase a vehicle for the Assistant 
Fire Chief of EMS, a new position that is included in the 2022 
budget.  This vehicle was not included in the 2022 budget as 
there are additional funds left over in fire budget for the 2021.  
The savings in the 2021 fire budget are due to budgeted 
positions that have not been filled.  Year to date, the fire budgets 
salaries are projected to be $157,000 under budget.   
 
Staff requests this purchase to be made from fund balance.  The 
total price of the vehicle is $43,985 (quote attached). 
 
Your favorable consideration of this request will be appreciated. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 

 
 
Tyler Howanyk, CPA 
Chief Financial Officer 
City of Goose Creek 
 

24



25



26



27



Request for City Council
Agenda Item

To: Natalie Zeigler, City Administrator; Mayor and City Council

From: Kelly Lovette, City Clerk

 Regular Meeting

 Work Session

 Special Meeting

  Ordinance  Resolution  Proclamation  Request to
Purchase

Department Head:

____________________
Signature & Date

City Administrator:

____________________
Signature & Date

 
Please check one box

 
Please check one box, if applicable

 
Ordinance/Resolution Title
July Monthly Department Reports (Informational Purposes Only)

Background Summary

Financial Impact

Impact if denied

Impact if approved

 

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



Request for City Council
Agenda Item

To: City Administrator, Mayor and City Council 

From: Brian Cook, Asst. City Admin.

 Regular Meeting

 Work Session

 Special Meeting

  Ordinance  Resolution  Proclamation  Request to
Purchase

Department Head:

____________________
Signature & Date

City Administrator:

____________________
Signature & Date

 
Please check one box

 
Please check one box, if applicable

 
Ordinance/Resolution Title
DISCUSSION OF NEGOTIATIONS INCIDENT TO PROPOSED CONTRACTURAL ARRANGEMENTS PER
30-4-70 (A) (2) - BERKELEY COUNTY ROADS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

Background Summary

Financial Impact

Impact if denied

Impact if approved

 

55


	City Council Agenda
	Item a. - Cover Page
	Item a. - CC Meeting 08-10-2021 Draft.doc
	Item a. - Cover Page
	Item a. - UTurn Ordinance 2021.doc
	Item a. - Cover Page
	Item a. - ARPA Resolution - Authorized Representative and Contact Person.docx
	Item b. - Cover Page
	Item b. - Ordinance_-_Amending_Code_of_Ordinances_to_Provide_for_Electronic_Quorum (1).docx
	Item a. - Cover Page
	Item b. - Cover Page
	Item b. - Memo - Financing for Fire Truck.pdf
	Item a. - Cover Page
	Item a. - August Department Reports.pdf
	Item a. - Cover Page

